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 06 June 2024 

 
Dear Inspectors, 
 
Local Plan Examination – Matters, Issues and Questions  
Representations in relation to Metropolitan Open Land Boundary at 141 Uxbridge 
Road Hampton TW12 1BL 
 
We write on behalf of the owner of 141 Uxbridge Road, Hampton, TW12 1BL to make 
representations on the accuracy of the Metropolitan Open Land (MOL) boundary on the 
Council’s Draft Policies Map (published December 2023) where it relates to their property at 
141 Uxbridge Road Hampton, TW12 1BL.  The relevant extract is shown at Figure 1. 
 
We specifically write in response to the ‘Main Matters, Issues and Questions with Draft 
Hearings Programme’ published on the Council’s website on 9 May 2024, with particular 
reference to ‘Main Matter 17 – Increasing biodiversity and the quality of our green and blue 
spaces, and greening the borough (Policy 34 – 43)’ to request that an error in the MOL 
boundary as it relates to our clients property is corrected.  The boundary as it relates to our 
client’s property is unjustified.  An amendment through the local plan process is the only route 
available to correct the MOL boundary.  The correction will allow for the delivery of additional 
residential accommodation and will not impact policies relating to MOL, open space, 
biodiversity and green infrastructure in the draft Local Plan. 
 
By way of background, we submitted representations in July 2023 on behalf of the owner in 
respect of the accuracy of the MOL boundary on the Council’s Regulation 19 Policies Map. 
An extract of the Regulation 19 Policies Map is shown at Figure 2.  We note that the MOL 
boundary in what appears to be to the latest version of the Council’s Draft Policies Map 
(December 2023) still shows an incorrect MOL insofar as it relates to our client’s property at 
141 Uxbridge Road.  
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                 

 
Figure 1: Extract from the Council’s Draft Policies Map (December 2023)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 2: Extract from Regulation 19 Policies map showing MOL boundary 

As explained in our earlier representation submitted to the Council in July 2023 in respect of 
the Regulation 19 Draft Policies Map, the strip of land adjoining the Longford River to the 
southwest of our client’s property, is subject to a Royal Parks Agency freebord license which 
is included at Appendix A.  

In common with all other areas of MOL adjoining the length of the Longford River, the 
boundary precisely follows the freebord boundary without deviation, aside from a sliver of our 
client’s land that appears to have been erroneously included due to a misinterpretation of the 
map attached to the Royal Parks Agency freebord license. The error in the MOL boundary 
evidently stems from the wrong line for the freebord boundary being taken from the map 
attached to the license.  This error has then been repeated.  The correct and incorrect lines 
are annotated on the freebord map at Figure 3.    

 

 



 

                                                                                                                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 3: Extract from Freebord License Map 

The line was evidently drawn in the belief that it was the boundary of the Royal Parks 
Freeboard area but that in error, the wrong line (of two very similar ones) was chosen. By 
looking at the length of this side of the MOL boundary, it was clearly unintentional in that as 
drawn, it’s inconsistent, illogical and unjustified.  As part of the Local Plan process there is 
now a simple way to correct this error.  Indeed, this is the only route available for our client to 
correct this.   

The MOL comprises fields and an adjoining waterway which is part of Royal Parks land. There 
is no other privately owned or brownfield land included in the MOL, except this tiny sliver of 
tarmac forming part of our client’s private car park.  

The Aerial View at Figure 4 shows the approximate line of the Freebord boundary and the 
private car park that the Reg 19 MOL boundary and the Council’s Draft Policies Map 
(December 2023) cuts across.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Correct, solid line of Freebord 



 

                                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 4 – Google Maps Aerial View 
 
The historic map extract from 1945 at Figure 5 shows clearly that there has historically been 
built form up to the boundary with the royal park land and a clearly defined boundary which 
follows what should be the correct boundary of the MOL. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 5 – Extract from Middlesex Sheet XXV.NE 
 
London Plan 2021 Policy G3 (Metropolitan Open Land) sets out the criteria for designating 
Metropolitan Open Land as set out below: 
 

Boroughs should designate MOL by establishing that the land meets at least one of 
the following criteria: 
 
1) it contributes to the physical structure of London by being clearly distinguishable 
from the built-up area 
 
2) it includes open air facilities, especially for leisure, recreation, sport, the arts and 
cultural activities, which serve either the whole or significant parts of London 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                 

3) it contains features or landscapes (historic, recreational, biodiverse) of either 
national or metropolitan value 
 
4) it forms part of a strategic corridor, node or a link in the network of green 
infrastructure and meets one of the above criteria. 

 
The site clearly forms part of the built-up area and has done for decades. There is no public 
access to the site, and it provides no open-air facilities. It contains no landscape features and 
does not form part of a strategic corridor, node or link in the network of green infrastructure. 
 
It does clearly adjoin a strategic corridor, however the boundary to this is clearly defined by 
the Royal Park land and does not include the private car parking of the proposal site.   
 
There is compelling evidence therefore that the sliver of our client’s land has been included in 
the draft MOL boundary in error and that there is no logic for its inclusion within it, given the 
boundary has remained the same for decades, either as built form or as an area of 
hardstanding used for car parking.  
 
Main Matter 17 – Increasing biodiversity and the quality of our green and blue spaces, 
and greening the borough (Policies 34 – 43)  
 
In respect of Matter 17 of the Matters, Issues and Questions published on the Council’s 
website on 9 May 2024, the following questions are raised with specific reference to policies 
34 to 43. These include the following policies: 

x Policy 34 Green and Blue Infrastructure (Strategic Policy) 
x Policy 35 Green Belt, Metropolitan Open Land and Local Green Space 
x Policy 36 Other Open Land of Townscape Importance (OOLTI) 
x Policy 37 Public Open Space, Play, Sport and Recreation 
x Policy 38 Urban Greening 
x Policy 39 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
x Policy 40 Rivers and River Corridors 
x Policy 41 Moorings and Floating Structures 
x Policy 42 Trees, Woodland and Landscape 
x Policy 43 Floodlighting and Other External Artificial Lighting  

 
The relevant questions raised in Matter 17 is as follows:  
 

x Are the requirements of the increasing biodiversity and the quality of our green and blue 
spaces, and greening the borough policies justified by appropriate available evidence, having 
regard to national guidance, local context, and meeting the requirements of the London Plan?  

 
It is our case that the continued repetition of the error in the MOL boundary, despite clear 
evidence that the inclusion was in error (as set out above) is not justified by appropriate 
available evidence.  It is appreciated that this is a modest error in the overall MOL boundary, 
and extremely minor in the context of the strategic considerations of the wider plan, however 
a correction through the local plan process is the only route available to our client to resolve 
this.  The correction will improve the accuracy of the plan, which, as it relates to the MOL 
boundary is unjustified, and allow for the potential provision of a residential dwelling on 
brownfield land. 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                 

In respect the above listed draft policies in the Regulation 19 Local Plan and the questions 
raised under Matter 17, we wish to emphasise that the proposed correction to the MOL 
boundary will not affect the draft policies due to the minor nature of the proposed correction 
and due to the site consisting of hardstanding (a private car park) devoid of any landscape 
features or planting. It therefore does not make any notable contribution towards biodiversity 
or visual amenity. The proposed correction will therefore not impact the green infrastructure 
of the borough.  
 
The site is also publicly inaccessible and does not fulfil any recreational purposes, and its 
removal from the MOL boundary will therefore not affect the recreational value of the area. 
The site is not part of a river or river corridor and will therefore not affect amenity in this regard. 
The site clearly forms part of the built-up area.  Historically, as set out at in the map extract at 
Figure 5, there was built form on this part of the site, directly adjoining the Royal Parks 
boundary. 
 
The line of the MOL boundary has clearly been drawn incorrectly and this has only become 
apparent as part of application discussions in relation to a new dwelling on our client’s private 
land. That the MOL is well established, or that the error has been repeated is irrelevant. 
 
We therefore respectfully request that the Inspector requires that the MOL boundary is 
modified as it relates to our client’s property to remove the sliver of land outside the Royal 
Parks Freebord as per the annotated map at Figure 6. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 6 – Requested correction of Reg 19 Policy map at boundary of 141 Uxbridge 
Road Hampton TW12 1BL 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                                                                                 

 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Rosalind Gall MA MRTPI 
Associate Director 
 

 
 
 
Encl. Appendix A - Royal Parks Agency freebord license 
 
 














